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NORTHMINSTER HYMN.

THE WORLD FOR CHRIST.

By the Rev. Robert P. Kerr, D. D.

"The world for Christ!" the angels sing,

As swift from star to star they fly

;

The world he died to save is his,

Give glory to our King most high.

The world for Christ! the martyrs join,

His wide dominion to proclaim

;

The King of angels is our king,

All laud and honor to his name.

The world for Christ ! in countless host,

The saints that throng the courts above.

With ceaseless praises, day and night.

Forever sing his wondrous love.

The world for Christ! let saints on earth,

His mercy tell to every soul,

'Till mortals all shall own him Lord,

From sea to sea, from pole to pole.

The world for Christ! from heaven to earth,

From earth to heaven his glory rings

;

While sons of men and shining hosts,

L'uite to crown him King of kings.





History of Northminster Church.

By Rev. ROBERT P. KERR, D. D., Pastor.

HISTORY of the church of God, or any part

of it, for any period, is but a review of God's

kindness to his people in connection with their

attempts to serve him in extending and build-

ing up his kingdom. Now that a quarter of a

century has passed since our church was

founded, it will be profitable to look back over that period to see

how, from a small beginning, the organization then effected has

grown to its present size and importance, that we may return

thanks to God for his great mercies, and with united voices say,

Ebenezer, hitherto hath the Lord helped us.

Like the church at Philippi, the first Christian congregation

organized in Europe, our church grew out of the prayers and

work of consecrated women. Mrs. Peyton Harrison, Miss Jane

M. Cross, and a few others, having become convinced that there

was a promising opening for a Presbyterian work in the northern

portion of Baltimore, determined that a Sabbath-school should

be established in that section of the city. Their efforts were

crowned with success, and on February 17, 1878, a school was

organized in Cowman's Hall at the southeast corner of Maryland

Avenue and Boundary Avenue, or what is now North Avenue.

Mr. William B. Phillips was elected as the first superintendent.

Mr. Phillips proved himself to be an indefatigable worker in the

Sunday-school not only, but also in the church, and to him was

largely due the organization, some years afterwards, of the
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Waverly Sunday-school and Presbyterian Church. Our school

rapidly increased in numbers, and it soon became evident that a

regular church would grow out of the enterprise. Early in 1879

steps were taken to secure a permanent location, and to build a

chapel.

Mrs. Peyton Harrison purchased for $12,000 and donated

to the enterprise the fine lot on which the church now stands, at

the southeast corner of St. Paul Street and what is now North

Avenue. On April 28, 1879, the following gentlemen connected

with the Presbyterian congregations of the city were elected

trustees : W. W. Spence, Rev. Dr. J. C. Backus, John L. Reed,

W. B. Phillips, John C. Barkley, E. B. Hunting, E. H. Perkins,

Jr., J. Franklin Dix, Henry D. Harvey, Edmund G. Lind,

Albert A. Hasson, and Richard K. Cross. They became incor-

porated April 30, 1879, under the name and title "The Boundary

Avenue Presbyterian Church." This charter was recorded in

the charter record of the city May 13, 1879. Article VI. of the

charter declared that "the Boundary Avenue Presbyterian

Church of the city of Baltimore shall forever remain a Presbyte-

rian Church in doctrine, government and worship, in accordance

with the standards of the Presbyterian Church in the United

States ; that is to say, the Confession of Faith, and the Larger

and Shorter Catechisms, and in ecclesiastical connection with

the Presbytery of Baltimore."

Subscriptions were soon obtained for the erection of a chapel,

at the rear of the lot and facing St. Paul Street. The corner-

stone was laid by the Rev. J. C. Backus, D. D. The sermon for

the occasion was preached by the Rev. J. S. Jones, D. D., and

prayers were offered by the Rev. William S. Plumer, D. D.,

and the Rev. Peyton Harrison, D. D. The chapel was completed
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by March, 1880, at an expense of $18,311.88, $5,000 of which

was contributed by the Presbyterian Association of P>altimore.

But before this the Boundary Avenue Presbyterian Church had

been formally organized by a committee of Baltimore Presbytery

on the 17th of February, 1880, in Cowman's Hall, where the

Sabbath-school had been conducted for two years. The com-

mittee of Presbytery to organize the church consisted of Rev.

J. G. Gibson, Rev. J. S. Jones, D. D., Rev. Andrew B. Cross, and

Elder J. Farris Moore.

The following eighteen persons entered into the organization,

presenting their certificates of dismission from other churches:

John M. Cross, from Central Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Louis Giese, from Central Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

James M. Huggins, from Brown Memorial Church, Baltimore.

Mrs. Jane E. Huggins, from Brown Memorial Church, Baltimore.

Miss Mary E. Huggins, from Brown Memorial Church, Baltimore.

Richard K. Cross, from Brown Memorial Church, Baltimore.

Miss Jane M. Cross, from Brown Memorial Church, Baltimore.

John C. Barkley, from Westminster Church, Baltimore.

Mrs. Ida V. L. Barkley, from Westminster Church, Baltimore.

Miss Eliza Bride, from Westminster Church, Baltimore.

Wm. B. Phillips, from Westminster Church, Baltimore.

Edward F. Arthurs, from Franklin Street Church, Baltimore.

Francis Hutchinson, from Second Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Mrs. Francis Hutchinson, from Second Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Miss Elizabeth P. Rivers, from Presbyterian Church, Smyrna, Delaware.

Miss Marian P. Jones, from Presbyterian Church, Smyrna, Delaware.

Mrs. Charlotte S. Cross, from United Congregational Ch., Newport, R. I.

Messrs. William B. Phillips and Richard K. Cross were at

the same meeting elected elders, and Messrs. J. C. Barkley,

Edward F. Arthurs and Allen Marquand were elected deacons.



8 NORTHMINSTER PRESBYTERIAN ChURCH.

The next step was to elect a pastor for the flock thus formed,

and under the evident guidance of the Holy Spirit, the Rev.

George Tybout Purves, of Wayne, Delaware county, Pa., was

unanimously called, a selection which proved a happy one indeed

for the church and pastor.

While the chapel was in course of erection and services were

still held in the hall, one of the Sunday-school scholars, Arthur

Corbin Powell, died, the first one ever called away from our

school to the courts on high. In the Sunday-school room of the

new chapel his parents, Mr. and Mrs. William M. Powell, placed

to his memory a beautiful stained-glass window with this in-

scription :

In Memory of

ARTHUR CORBIN POWELL,

The First Member of this School Called to Jesus.

November 15, 1879.

The chapel was formally dedicated to the worship of God,

March 7, 1880, the Rev. J. C. Backus, D. D., offering the dedi-

catory prayer, and the Rev. J. S. Jones, D. D., preaching the

sermon. At the evening service of the same day Mr. Purves

preached his first sermon as pastor.

On Tuesday evening, March 16, 1880, Mr. Purves was

formally installed, the Rev. J. T. Leftwich, D. D., presiding;

the Rev. J. P. Campbell, D. D., preaching the sermon; the Rev.

J. S. Jones, D. D., delivering the charge to the pastor, and the

Rev. W. J. Gill the charge to the people.

The next day, the 17th of March, Mr. Richard K. Cross was

installed ruling elder. Mr. Phillips having been already or-

dained and installed by the committee of Presbytery on February
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17th, and Messrs. J. C. Barkley and E. F. Arthurs were ordained

and installed deacons.

On the same day the first meeting of the session was held,

Mr. Purves presiding, and Mr. Richard K. Cross was elected

clerk, which position he has faithfully and acceptably held up

to the present time. At this first meeting of the session the

following persons were received into the church

:

On Confession.

William Major Powell.

Miss Laura Belknap Hunting.

Clarence Hays Hunting.

On Certificate.

Mrs. Ann C. Arthur, from Franklin Street Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Mrs. Eliza Ferguson, from Franklin Street Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Miss Jane Coney, from Franklin Street Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

E.EUBEN Foster, from Second Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Mrs. Sarah L. Foster, from Second Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Douglas Foster, from Second Presbyterian Church Baltimore.

Mrs. Mary E. Foster, from Second Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Edward L. Thomas, from Brown Memorial Presbyterian Church, Baltimore.

Mrs. Bettie S. Thomas, from Brown Memorial Presbyt'n Ch., Baltimore.

William S. Cross, from Brown Memorial Presbyterian Church Baltimore.

Mrs. Emma B. Powell, from the Associate Reformed Church, Baltimore.

Miss Mary R. Patterson, from the United Presbyterian Ch., Baltimore.

This was a happy and hopeful beginning of the work of the

new church, and the sequel abundantly justified the hopes of

those who had given themselves to the sacred enterprise.

The first of all the working societies of the church was the

Woman's Aid Society for general church work, but afterwards

turned into a missionary society for Home and Foreign Mis-
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sions. It was organized November 3, 1880, with twenty-three

members, which number was increased to forty-three before the

year was out. The first officers were Mrs. Alexander F. Mur-

doch, President;' Mrs. B. F. Stead, Vice-President; Miss

Alexina Crawford (afterwards Mrs. WilHam B. PhilHps),

Secretary, and Mrs. Reuben Foster, Treasurer. Mrs. Foster has

held the office of Treasurer without intermission to the present

day, giving heart and hands to the great work of the Society.

The interest of the members of this Society has never flagged,

and they have done a grand work for the cause of God at home

and abroad by the money they have given themselves and col-

lected from others, as w^ell as by their prayers and the inspiration

their example has given to the whole congregation.

Mr. Purves' ministry was most acceptable, and the attend-

ance at the services constantly increased, while the membership

was steadily enlarged by additions on confession and certificate.

In less than five years the communicant roll had grown to 219,

and that of the Sabbath-school to 250. Mr. Purves was uni-

versally beloved, and the attendance upon his ministrations

crowded the chapel to its utmost capacity.

In January 24, 1883, Mr. John L. Reed and Mr. E. B.

Mallory were elected ruling elders, and on February 24th Mr.

Mallory was ordained, and he and Mr. Reed were installed.

On the 5th of October, 1883, the Rev. W. A. Jones was

authorized to engage a hall at $5.00 per week for services at

Waverly. This was the beginning of the Waverly Presbyte-

rian Church.

Towards the close of the year 1883 it became manifest that

the main edifice of the church must be built, and on December

5th, at a congregational meeting, a committee of seventeen was
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appointed, with authority to raise funds, and as soon as they

had secured $25,000 to proceed to the erection of the church.

The congregation was thoroughly canvassed, and handsome

contributions were also received from generous Presbyterians

in other congregations of the city, among whom were the Rev.

J. C. Backus, D. D., Mr. George S. Brown and Mr. W. W.
Spence.

On June 4, 1884, the corner-stone of the present magnificent

marble building was laid by the pastor, Mr. Purves. The cost

of the building, ground, organ and manse was as follows

:

The lot of ground on the southeast corner of Boundary Avenue

and St. Paul Street, donated by Mrs. Ella M. Harrison, $12,000.00

The strip of ground adjoining on the east, bought from the Balti-

more City Passenger Railway Company, 1,638.88

The chapel, completed on April 8, 1881, cost, 18,311.88

The church, completed July 15, 1885, cost, 57,99377

The church organ, built by George Jardine & Son, of New York,

including the water motor, 3,000.00

Total cost of church, chapel and organ, $92,944.53

The manse, bought April 29, 1895, No. 1808 St. Paul St., and cost, 7,528.06

$100,472.59

The building committee, every member of which cheerfully

gave themselves to the great work committed to them, consisted

of Messrs. John Murdoch, Reuben Foster, Oliver Hoblitzell,

Richard K. Cross and John L. Reed.

Mr. Murdoch was the indefatigable chairman, and by reason

of his professional skill and taste, as well as by his devoted

interest in the work, he did a great service to the church, and

one that has been highly appreciated. From 1886 to this day
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Mr. Murdoch has been also chairman of the Executive Com-
mittee of the Board of Trustees, having charge of the church

property, and all repairs and improvements.

To Mr. John L. Reed fell the laborious task of treasurer of

the building fund, and afterwards of the manse fund, and he

did his work not only with energy and zeal, but also con amove,

and he has done also all other work that has come into his hands,

for the church, and it has always been evident that he loves the

very stones of the house of God, and takes pleasure in the dust

thereof, as he does also all that pertains to the interests of our

beloved Zion.

On the 1 8th of March, 1885, Messrs. William M. Powell,

Alvin N. Bastable, and Alexander H. Fields were elected dea-

cons.

The church building was dedicated March 22, 1885, the

Rev. George T. Purves preaching in the morning, and the Rev.

A. A. Hodge, D. D., of Princeton, N. J., in the evening. This

was followed by a union service on the next Tuesday, at which

addresses were made by the Rev. J. T. Leftwich, D. D., and

others.

On February 8, 1882, Mr. Reuben Foster was elected one of

the Board of Trustees, and, with the exception of a brief interval,

has been a member ever since that time. On February 14, 1883,

he was elected to the office of chairman of the Board of Trustees,

and again on March 23, 1886, and has filled that important office

continuously since, with such ability, devotion and tact as to win

and hold the respect and love of all the people.

Mr. Purves, whose pastorate had been greatly blessed to the

increase of the church, in numbers, financial strength, and to its

growth in grace, having been called to the pulpit of the First
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Presbyterian Church, of Pittsburg, Pa., resigned his office on

June 2, 1886, and the congregation rehictantly assented, not

feeUng it right to oppose their pastor's convictions of duty.

But the people whom he had served so acceptably and success-

fully have never ceased to hold him in loving remembrance.

Hn ^cmortam.

GEORGE TYBOUT PURVES,
D. D., LL. D.

Born September 27, i;'52.

Died September 24, igoi.

The First Pastor of This Church,

1880- 1886.

Greatly Honored and Beloved.

'
' They that be wise shall shine as

the brightness of the firmament

;

and they that turn many to right-

eousness^ as the stars for ever and

ever."—Daniel xii. 3.

The above is the inscription on the mural tablet to Dr.

Purves, unveiled March 5, 1904, at 8 p. m., with address by the

Rev. Frank E. Williams, and prayer by Rev. Robert P. Kerr,

D. D.

On the 2 1 St of June, 1887, the Rev. William Durant, D. D.,

was elected to the pastorate of the church.
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The next year, 1888, on the 12th of March, the Ladies' Art-
Industrial Society was organized, with the following

officers

:

Mrs. Oliver Hoblitzell, President.

Mrs. Hiram H. Taylor,

Mrs. William M. Powell

Mrs. John C. Barkley, Secretary.

Mrs. Edward E. Arthurs, Treasurer.

L Vice-Presidents.

This society has worked mainly for the promotion of the

interests of our own church, and has done remarkable service

from its organization until the present. Among other things,

it provided money for the church organ, to the amount of

$2,151.31 ; frescoing and windows of church, $1,200; remodel-

ing chapel, $1,500; remodeling library, $100; chapel chairs,

; infant-class chairs, $14; manse debt, $500; piano for

chapel, $400, a part of which is not yet paid, but will be soon.

They also contribute $400 per annum towards the salaries of the

members of the choir.

The Christian Endeavor Society was organized the 28th

of November, 1887, under the directiun of Dr. Durant, as was

subsequently the Junior Christian Endeavor Society. Dr.

Durant loved the children, and was ever thoughtful and mindful

of everything for their good. The first officers of the Christian

Endeavor Society were

:

Dr. J. T. HoGE, President.

H. B. Shipley, Vice-President.

C. H. Ashburner, Secretary.

W. Harvey, Assistant Secretary.

J. W. Taylor, Treasurer.
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On the 24th of March, 1888, the Stephenson Missionary

Society of Gleaners was organized for the younger girls of

the church. Their first officers were

:

Miss Lucy Crawford^ President.

J. BuRKLOE Brown, Secretary.

A. D. Seeman, Assistant Secretary.

R. Carll Foster, Treasurer.

C. Reynolds Bedford, Assistant Treasurer.

The Junior Christian Endeavor Society was organized

November 23, 1890, with the membership of twenty-five. Rev.

William Durant, D. D., and Miss Florence Stratton (Mrs.

Weaver) were elected superintendents. The name of the society

was the "Westminster Christian Endeavor Society of Boundary

Avenue Presbyterian Church." The object of the society was

the training of the children in deeper spiritual life, and more

active Christian work. The names of the superintendents from

the time of organization to the present are as follows

:

At organization

—

Rev. William Durant, D. D., Miss Florence Stratton,

Miss Virginia Armiger, Miss Isabella Carswell,

Miss May Haughwout, Miss Hattie A. Steuart.

The present superintendents are

:

Miss Roberta Carswell, Miss Hattie A. Steuart.

Dr. Durant also established the "J^i^t Meeting" of the

Session, Deacons, and Trustees, February 20, 1891, meetings

to be held on the first Monday in February, and on the second

Monday in October annually, and at other times when called by

the Moderator for conference in the interest of the church.
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At the February meeting, young men, communicants of the

church, are selected to assist in promoting the welfare of the

church, in connection with the Session, Deacons, or Trustees, as

may be desired, and for conference, and to act as ushers at the

services of the church. This "Joi^^ Meeting" has been a means

of great good in the work of the congregation, in bringing all

the officers into intimate relations, and in acquainting them

with the condition of "affairs in each board, thus increasing the

general interest and promoting unity of action.

Mr. George B. Hunting is, and has been from the beginning,^

the Permanent Clerk of the "Joint Meeting," evincing great

tact, faithfulness and courtesy in the administration of his office.

Mr. Hunting has also been for many years secretary of the

Board of Trustees, and in this position as well he has shown

himself a thorough man of affairs, and a devoted servant of the

church.

On the 1st of March, 1888, Wesley G. Fortune was ap-

pointed sexton of the church, which position he still holds, as he

has been, during the long period of seventeen years, a faithful

"doorkeeper in the house of the Lord," and care-taker of the

building, with uncommon faithfulness, efficiency and courtesy,

endearing himself to every fnember of the congregation, and to

all of the pastors under whose administrations he has served.

On the 28th of March, 1888, Mr. Hiram H. Taylor was

elected treasurer of the Board of Trustees, and to this day he

has filled that delicate and laborious office with such fidelity,

courtesy and tact as to merit and receive the gratitude and affec-

tionate regard of all the members of the congregation.

Mr. Henry D. Harvey, a beloved member of the church, died

2 1 St December, 1889, and left by his last will to the Boundary
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Avenue Presbyterian Church the sum of $2,000 for the Hbrary

of the Sabbath-school, and the sum of $1,000 to the church for

the reduction of the debt, or to the general purposes of the

church. Both of these bequests were very much appreciated, and

came to us in a time when the church needed the assistance, and

they were an inspiration towards the removal of the debt of

$8,000 which rested upon the church, which was afterward

all paid, leaving the church and manse entirely free from debt.

The $2,000 left for the library was invested by the Board

of Trustees in "irredeemable ground rents," yielding the sum of

$124 annually, which income is applied by a committee of the

Sabbath-school in purchasing new books for the library, and in

keeping the old books in good repair, thus maintaining the

library handsomely.

The Sabbath-school had a new library room prepared, with

new shelves and cases for the reception of the new books, and

placed the inscription on the door, Harvey Memorial Library.

January 25, 1891, Messrs. J. Hume Smith and T. Melville

Prentiss were installed ruling elders in the church. Both of these

elders served the church faithfully, greatly honored and loved,

until they were called away to their eternal rest, Mr. Prentiss

on September 29, 1901, and Mr. J. Hume Smith, September 5,

1904.

Dr. Durant, the scholarly preacher and polished Christian

gentleman, as well as indomitable worker and wise organizer,

served the church, greatly beloved and honored, until May 9,

1892, when he resigned his charge, and the congregation were

left again without an under-shepherd.

On the 17th of October, 1893, the Rev. Frank E. Williams

was called to the pastorate, and was installed December 20, 1893.
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Mr. Williams was quite a young man, but full of zeal, and gifted

with fine talents as a preacher and pastor, and he threw himself

into the work with great earnestness and enthusiasm. The

church continued to grow in numbers and influence under Mr.

Williams' labors, and when he gave up his charge he left it a

solid, harmonious and intelligent body of Presbyterian Chris-

tians, in excellent condition for any one who might follow, to

reap the fruit of his labors.

On October 22, 1893, Messrs. Franklin J. Morton and

Albert L. Gardner were ordained and installed ruling elders, and

on the same day, Messrs. J. Kemp Wysham, Eugene M. Hilder-

man, William G. Garrett and George H. Porter were ordained

and installed Deacons.

During the year 1897 the Purves Society of Earnest

Workers was organized, consisting of the girls of the congre-

gation. The first officers of this faithful body of workers were

:

Mrs. Spencer E. Sisco, Leader.

Miss Leila Skeen, President.

Miss Mary Reeside, Secretary.

Miss Alberta Smith, Treasjirer.

On the 17th of September, 1900, Mr. William M. Powell, a

wise, faithful and devoted member of the church and of the

Board of Trustees, passed to his reward, honored and mourned

by the whole congregation.

The Rev. Frank E. Williams resigned his office as pastor

December 10, 1902, the congregation, in compliance with his

earnest request, sorrowfully consenting, and his official connec-

tion with the church terminated December 31, 1902. Mr. Wil-

liams is now pastor at Lewes, Delaware, and whenever he visits
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his former charge in Baltimore he receives a hearty welcome

from his old friends and from his successor.

The present pastor, who was then pastor of the First Pres-

byterian Church, of Richmond, Va., which position he had held

for nearly twenty years, was called to the pulpit of Boundary

Avenue Church, on April 22, 1903. He took charge of the

church June ist, and was formally installed June 14, 1903, at

the evening service. The Rev. Henry Branch, D. D., presided

and propounded the constitutional questions, the Rev. Donald

Guthrie, D. D., preached the sermon, the Rev. J. P. Campbell,

D. D., delivered the charge to the pastor, and the Rev. John

Timothy Stone the charge to the people. The congregation

have given their pastor a most hearty welcome, and are co-

operating with him cordially in his work for the Master.

On the 30th of March, 1904, it was decided, at a meeting of

the congregation, to change the title of the church from "Boun-

dary Avenue Presbyterian Church," the name no longer being

appropriate because the name of the avenue upon whi(ih it was

situated had been changed to North Avenue. The title adopted

was "The Northminster Presbyterian Church of Baltimore

City," and on March 31, 1904, the charter of the church was

amended accordingly.

During the summer of 1904 the pulpit platform was extended

three feet and three inches forward, and a beautiful Gothic

reredos of solid oak was built across the arch in the rear, at an

expense of $1,610, adding greatly to the beauty of the church,

and affording space on the pulpit platform back of the reredos

for a comfortable retiring and robing room for the miniscer.

From the beginning the congregation have taken a deep

interest in missions, both home and foreign. During the year
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1899 it was determined to assume the support of a foreign mis-

sionary, and the Rev. C. E. Patton, a highly promising young
minister of our denomination, was appointed to labor in China.

Mr. Patton found a helpmeet in Miss Edith Rosa Carswell, a

lovely young Christian lady of the congregation, and they were

married June 7, 1900, and the last of October, 1900, they sailed

for China, where Mr. Patton still labors, at Yeung Kong, China.

Mrs. Patton was removed by the hand of God, and entered upon
her everlasting rest April 2, 1902, leaving one child, Edith, now
living with 'her mother's parents at Baltimore. Mr. Patton has

proved himself a faithful and able missionary, and is doing a

successful work in his distant field, while the people of our

church constantly remember him in their prayers.

The mission at Waverly, in the northern suburbs of Balti-

more, which was begun in 1883, was organized into a church

in 1887, a number of members being sent out from our congre-

gation for the purpose, and it is now a growing congregation,

under the pastoral care of the Rev. John R. Rosebro.

During the year 1903, two beloved ladies of our church,

Mrs. Fannie S. Taft Prentiss and Miss Elizabeth V. Prentiss,

went to India as missionaries, where they are now, at Etah,

devoting their lives to the great cause which is so near to the

heart of the Master.

We have thus given a brief sketch of the history of our

beloved church during the quarter of a century of its existence.

The years past have witnessed much consecrated toil on the part

of officers and people, and the members of the church have con-

stantly shown a spirit of harmony and co-operation, and a

readiness to deny themselves for the cause of God. The congre-
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gation has grown steadily from the beginning, and now that the

population of this section of Baltimore has increased, and is

increasing so rapidly, there is good reason to expect, under the

blessing of the Master whom we serve, greater growth in the

time to come. The church is full of courage and hope, and our

motto is, Forward in the Name of God.

The present pastor would like to say, that he has found the

members of the official bodies of the church, the Session, the

Trustees and the Deacons, to be earnest promoters of the work

of the church, always ready to give their time, labors and best

thought to the important interests committed to their hands.

They have been perfectly harmonious among themselves, and

extremely courteous to the pastor; but more than that, they

have not failed to do everything he has asked of them. To be

associated with such men is a great happiness to the pastor, and

it gives him courage and inspiration for his work.

The same spirit of harmony, courtesy and readiness to help

in the cause which brings us together has been manifested by

the various societies and by the congregation. May the great

Head of the church keep us all in the bonds of charity, unity

and peace

!

On Alarch 5th and 6th, 1905, by order of the joint Boards,

the twenty-fifth anniversary of the. organization of the church

was celebrated. On Sunday, the 5th, the Rev. Francis L. Patton,

D. D., of Princeton, preached at the morning service, and was

followed by the pastor, who delivered an address on the history

of Northminster Church. At the evening service Dr. Patton

preached again, and the mural tablet, in memory of the Rev.

George Tybout Purves, D. D., LL. D., was unveiled by Mr.

W. W. Spence. Then the Rev. Frank E. Williams pronounced
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a eulogy on Dr. Purves, the pastor offered prayer, and the people

sang the hymn

—

" For all the saints who from their labors rest."

On Monday evening, the 6th, at a great meeting held in the

church, addresses were delivered by Mr. John Willis Baer, the

Rev. F. E. Williams and Dr. Kerr. This was followed by a

social function in the chapel, given by the Men's Association of

the church.

All of the proceedings connected with the anniversary were

greatly enjoyed, while the congregation showed a deep sense of

thankfulness to God for his kindness to our church, and a strong

faith and hope of great things in the years to come.
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SUCCESSION OF PASTORS

OF

NORTHMINSTER CHURCH,

Rev. George Tybout Purves, D. D., LL, D.,

Installed March 16, 1880.

Resigned June 2, 1886.

Rev. William Durant, D. D.

Installed June 21, 1887.

Resigned May 9, 1892.

Rev. Frank E. Williams.

Installed December 20, 1892.

Resigned December 31, 1902.

Rev. Robt. P. Kerr, D. D.

Installed June 14, 1903.
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SUCCESSION OF ELDERS AND DEACONS.

Elders.

Wm. B. Phillips, elected Feb. 17, 1880. (Went to found

Waverly Church.)

Richard K. Cross, elected February 17, 1880.

John L. Reed, elected June 24, 1883.

E. B. Mallory, "

J. Hume Smith, elected January 25, 1891 ; died Sept. 5, 1904.

T. Melville Prentiss, elected Jan. 25, 1891; died Oct. 29,

1901.

F. J. Morton, elected September 27, 1893.

C. W. WiSNER, "

A. L. Gardner, "

Deacons.

J. C. Barkley, elected February 17, 1880.

E. F. Arthurs, "

William M. Powell, elected March 18, 1885; died Sept. 17,

1900.

A. N. Bastable, elected March 18, 1885.

Alexander Fields, elected March 18, 1885. (Went to found

Waverly Church.)

J. K. Wysham, elected September 23, 1893.

Eugene M. Hilderman, elected September 23, 1893.

W. G. Garrett,

Geo. H. Porter,
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THE SUCCESSION OF MEMBERS IN THE

BOARD OF TRUSTEES.

Original Board of Trustees Elected April 28, 1879.

William W. Spence, i879 to 1892

Rev. John C. Backus, D. D., 1879 to 1882

John L. Reed, 1879 to 1885

William B. Phillips, i 1879 to 1885

John C. Barkley, 1879 to 1887

J.
Franklin Dix, 1879 to 1882

Henry DjHarvey, 1879 to 1888

Eben B. Hunting, 1879 to 1885

E. Henry Perkins, 1879 to 1882

Edmund G. Lind, 1879 to 1882

Albert A. Hasson, 1879 to 1882

Richard K. Cross, 1879 to 1886

Persons zvho have been Members of the Board since the Origi-

nal Board, and zvho are not in the Present Board, January

1, 1905.

William M. Powell, February 8, 1882, to September 17, 1900.

John C. Barkley, February 8, 1882, to October i, 1887.

Dr. John R. Hooper, February 8, 1882, to March 5, 1884.

Eliada B. Mallory, February 8, 1882, to March 18, 1885.
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Edward F. Arthurs, February 8, 1882, to March 17, 1886.

William S. Cross, March 5, 1884, to March 17, 1886.

John R. Morice, March 5, 1884, to March 17, 1886.

Dudley T. Morton, March 21, 1885, to March 17, 1886.

Arthur L. Kimball, March 18, 1885, to March 17, 1886.

MiFLiN Coulter, March 2i, 1888 to October 15, 1894.

W. Hall Harris, March 20, 1889, to December 13, 1892.

Present Board of Trustees, January 1, 1905.

Reuben Foster, February 8, 1882

Alvin N. Bastable, March 18, 1885

Hiram H. Taylor, March 17, il

John Murdoch, March 17, i!

Oliver Hoblitzell, March 17, 1886

Franklin J. Morton, March 17, 1886

Robert S. Carswell, March 17, 1886

George B. Hunting, March 17, 1886

William H. Bayless, March 21, 1888

Walters T. Harvey, December 13, 1892

Capt. Samuel B. Marts, March 20, 1895

James R. Thompson, October 9, 1900
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SUPERINTENDENTS OF THE SABBATH-

SCHOOL.

William B. Phillips.

March 1878 to June 14, 1885.

Rev. George T. Purves, D. D., LL. D.

June 21, 1885, to April, 1886.

Mr. a. N. Bastable.

April, 1886, to September 29, 1889.

Rev. William Durant^ D. D.

October 6, 1889, to March 30, 1890.

John E. Sisco.

April 6, 1890.
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WHAT THE PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH
STANDS FOR.

The Presbyterian Church stands for a system of doctrine based upon the

absolute and eternal sovereignty of God, by whose grace alone fallen men

are saved, through the blood of Christ, who purchased salvation for us by

his death on the cross; the benefits thereof being applied by the Holy Spirit,

who worketh in us repentance for sin, and faith to receive the gift cf eternal

life.

The Presbyterian Church stands for the catholicity or universality of the

holy church of God, maintaining that Christ is its only Head, and that it is

composed of "all those persons throughout the world, who profess the true

religion of Christ, together with their children" ; thus recognizing the

churchship of all denominations which hold the fundamental truths of the

gospel, receiving their ministers in our pulpits, and their members at our

communion.

The Presbyterian Church, in its own polity, stands for a government by

representative assemblies, from the Session up through the Presbytery and

Synod to the General Assembly, each made up of presbyters, or elders, ruling

and teaching, called by Christ through his word and Spirit, and elected by

the people whom they represent.

The Presbyterian Church stands for religious and civil liberty, declaring

that "God alone is Lord of the conscience, and hath left it free from the

doctrines and commandments of men." It stands for the inspiration and

absolute infallibility of the holy Scriptures, for a faith and life based upon

an intelligent apprehension of the truth, for simplicity of worship, for

thorough education, for a high standard of Christian living, and for the duty

of the church to evangelize the world.

Of the influence of Presbyterianism William E. Gladstone said : "It has

given the advantages which in civil order belong to local self-government

and representative institutions; orderly habits of mind; the development of a
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genuine individuality; the sense of a common life and the disposition ener-

getically to defend it; the love of law combined with the love of f'eedom."

George Bancroft said of American Independence that "the Revolution of

1776, so far as it was affected by religion, was a Presbyterian measure. It

was the natural outgrowth of the principles which the Presbyterianism of the

old world planted in her sons, the English Puritans, the Scotch Covenanters,

the French Huguenots, the Dutch Calvinists, and the Presbyterians of

Ulster."

President Benjamin Harrison said : "The Presbyterian Church has been

steadfast for liberty, and it has kept steadfast for education. It has stood as

stiff as a steel beam for the faith delivered to our fathers, and it still stands

with steadfastness for that essential doctrine—the inspired Word. It is not

an illiberal church. There is no body of Christians in the world that opens

its arms wider to all who love the Master.' Though it has made no boast or

shout, it has yet been an aggressive church. It has been a missionary church

from the beginning."
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STATISTICS of the PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH,
U. S. A., 1640 to 1904.

Year. Ministers,

1640, 5

1690, 10

1705, 12

I717, 19

1789, 177

1800, 183

1825, 1,080

1837, 2,140

1838, O. S., 1,690

N. S., 1,181

1849, O. S., 1,860

N. S., 1,453

1859, O. S., 2,577

N. S., 1,545

i860, O. S., 2,656

N. S., 1,523

1862, O. S., 2,859

N. S., 1,555

1869, O. S., 2,381

N. S., 1,848

1870, 4,238

1880, 5,044

1890, 6,158

1895, 6,797

1896, 6,942

1897, 7,129

1898, 7,190

1899, 7,312

1900, 7,467

1901, 7,532

1902, 7,617

1903 7,703

1904, 7,762

Churches.

40

431

449

1,770

2,865

2,343

1,286

2,512

1,555

3,487

1,542

3,531

1,482

3,686

1,466

2,740

1,631

4,526

5,489

6,894

7,496

7,573

7,631

7,635

7,657

7,750

7,779

7,748

7,822

7,933
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GENERAL VIEW OF THE CHURCH.

Presbyterian Statistics of the World.

By Dr. W. H. Roberts, American Secretary of the Pan Presbyterian Alliance.

United States, 8,350.000

Australasia, 617,841

France, 780,126

Hungary, Transylvania, 4,560,823

Holland, 2,501,907

British Isles, 6,207,503

Canada, 831,729

Germany, \ 5,821,748

Switzerland, 2,194,329

Africa, 1,423,000

Asia and in missions through the world, 1,207,451

In the Evangelical Church of Germany, exclusive of

Lutherans, 7,790,128

Total, 40,286,685

STATISTICS OF THE PRINCIPAL PROTESTANT
DENOMINATIONS OF THE WORLD.

Presbyterians, 40,286,685

Methodists (white and colored), 23,397,484

Episcopalians, 21,000,000

Baptists (white and colored), 13,252,104

Congregationalists, 3,586,968

RELIGIOUS STATISTICS OF THE WORLD.
Total population of the world, 1,450,000,000

Christian, 501,600,000

Mohammedan, 176,800,000

Jews, 7,100,000

Pagans, 764,500,000
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CHURCHES OF BALTIMORE PRESBYTERY,

And also the Southern Presbyterian Churches of

Baltimore City, with Dates of Organization, in Chro-

nological Order.

Mt. Paran, Harrisonville, Baltimore county, 1715.

Churchville, Harford county, 1738.

Emmittsburg, Frederick county, 1760.

First, Baltimore city, 1761.

Piney Creek, Frederick county, 1763.

Bethel, Harford county, 1769.

Frederick City, Frederick county, 1780.

Second, Baltimore city, 1802.

Cumberland, Alleghany county, 1806.

Hagerstown, Washington county, 18 17.

Williamsport, Washington county, 1819.

Third, Baltimore city, 1822. Dissolved, 1870.

Toneytown, Carroll county, 1828.

Fourth, Baltimore city, 1833. Dissolved, 1836.

Franklin Square, Baltimore city, 1836.

Fifth, Baltimore city, 1833. Dissolved, 1862.

Ellicott city, Howard county, 1837.

New Windsor, Carroll county, 1839.

Franklinville, Baltimore county, 1839.
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Havre-de-Grace, Harford county, 1841.

Chestnut Grove, Baltimore county, 1843.

Harmony Lisbon, Howard county (Southern), 1844.

Aisquith Street, Baltimore city, 1844.

Annapolis, 1846.

Broadway, Baltimore city, 1846.

Govanstown, Baltimore county, 1846.

Franklin Street, Baltimore city (Southern), 1847.

Madison Street (colored), Baltimore city, 1848.

Granite, Baltimore county, 1848.

Parkton, Baltimore county, 1850. Dissolved, 1873.

Belair, Harford county, 1852.

Westminster, Baltimore city, 1852.

Central, Baltimore city, 1853.

Twelfth, Baltimore city, 1854. Dissolved, 1903.

Greene Street, Baltimore city, 1854. Dissolved, 1875.

Light Street, Baltimore city, 1855.

Deer Creek Harmony, Harford county, 1855.

Fro'Stburg, Alleghany county, 1859.

Barton, Alleghany county, 1859.

Lonaconing, Alleghany county, 1861.

Springfield, Carroll county, 1861. (Southern.)

The Grove, Harford county, 1863.

Dolphin Street, Baltimore city, 1869. Dissolved, 1875.

Brown Memorial, Baltimore city, 1870.

Ashland, Baltimore county, 1874.
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Fallston, Harford county, 1874.

Mont Alto, Baltimore county, 1875.

Hampden, Baltimore city, 1875.

Franklin Square, Baltimore city, 1875. (Southern.)

Ellerslie, Alleghany county, 1875. Dissolved, 1881.

Lafayette Square No. i, Baltimore city, 1875. Dissolved, 1879.

Knox (colored), Baltimore city, 1877. Dissolved, 1902.

Canton, Baltimore city, 1891.

Abbott Memorial, Baltimore city, 1883.

Northminster (formerly Boundary Ave.), Baltimore city, 1880.

Lafayette Square No. 2, Baltimore city, 1880,

Grace (colored), Baltimore city, 1881.

Catonsville, Baltimore county, 1881.

Relay, Baltimore county, 1881.

Zion, Anne Arundel county, 1884.

Faith, Baltimore city, 1886.

Fulton Avenue, Baltimore city, 1886.

Waverly, Baltimore city, 1887.

Randallstown, Baltimore county, 1889.

Church of the Covenant, Baltimore city, 1889.

Highland, Harford county, 1890.

Bohemian and Moravian, Baltimore city, 1890.

Sparrow's Point, Baltimore county, 1890.

Ridgely Street, Baltimore city, 1892.

Brunswick, Frederick county, 1892.

Crisp Memorial, Anne Arundel county, 1893.
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Mill Run (colored), Anne Arundel co., 1895. Dissolved, 1904.

Calvary, Annapolis, 1896.

St. Helena, Baltimore county, 1897.

Walbrook, Baltimore city, 1898.

North Bend, Harford county, 1898.

Lord, Alleghany county, 1898.

Babcock Memorial, Baltimore city. Organized as Park Church,

1893. Changed to present name, 1901.

Calverton, 1900.

Midland, Alleghany county, 1901.

Roland Park, Baltimore county, 1901.

Hamilton, Baltimore county, 1901.

Reid Memorial, Baltimore city, 1904.

Total number Presbyterian churches in city of Baltimore, 38

Baltimore Presbytery, 65
"

ministers,
"

69

" "
"

communicants,
"

ii>750
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CONTRIBUTIONS OF ALL THE CHURCHES
IN BALTIMORE PRESBYTERY,

For Year Ending April 6, 1904.

Home Missions, $25,830

Foreign Missions, 14,162

Education, 638

Sabbath-school Work, 1,292

Church Erection, I3j73I

Relief Fund, 1,418

Freedmen, 796

Synodical Aid, 2,320

Aid for Colleges, 539

General Assembly, 824

Congregational Expenses, 162,723

Miscellaneous, 8,631

Grand total, $231,672
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Directory of Northminster Church.

PUBLIC WORSHIP.

Sabbath.

1 1 A. M. and 8 P. M., Services.

2 p. M.^ Sunday-school.

10 A. M.^ Junior Christian Endeavor.

7 P. M.J Senior Christian Endeavor.

Wednesday,

Prayer-meeting, 8 p. m.

COMMUNION.

The Communion will be celebrated on the third Sundays in

the months of January, April and October, and on the second

Sunday of July, at the morning service.

Services preparatory to the Communion are held on Satur-

day afternoons prior to these dates, at which times also the

Session meets to receive new members.

The children of believing parents may be presented for bap-

tism at the preparatory service on Saturday afternoons, as at any

other service of the church.
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IMPORTANT NOTICES.

By the Pastor.

If you are sick, or know of any sickness or trouble in the

congregation, please notify the pastor at once, either by postal

card or otherwise.

The pastor visits among the congregation systematically,

calling on each family in turn, as frequently as the size of the

congregation will allow. If you do not see your pastor as often

as you would like, call on him.

The roll of members is revised annually, and the names of

persons whose residences are unknown are omitted from the

published Directory. They are retained, however, in the Church

Register.

Every member of the congregation should belong to some

one of the societies of the church.

It is the duty of all who can do so to attend both the services

on Sunday, and the Wednesday evening prayer-meeting, and

also to take some part in the Sunday-school.

The pastor and his wife are at home Tuesday afternoons and

evenings, but are glad to see those who call at any time.



NORTHMINSTER PRESBYTERIAN ChURCH. 4I

OFFICERS OF THE CHURCH.

Pastor,

REV. ROBERT P. KERR, D. D.,

C. & p. Telephone, Mt. Vernon, 705.

Residence, 25 W. North Avenue.

Missionary Fastor,

REV. CHARLES E. PATTON,

Yeung Kong, via Canton, China.

ELDERS.

Richard K. Cross {Clerk), 1520 Park Avenue.

John L. Reed^ 9 E. Mt. Royal Avenue.

Franklin J. Morton, Beec^hdale and Club Aves., Roland Park.

Charles W. Wisner, 21 18 Oak Street.

Albert L. Gardner,, 216 E. Lafayette Avenue.

DEACONS.

Alvin N. Bastable, 27 W. North Avenue.

George H. Porter, 2430 Calvert Street.

J. Kemp Wysham, 1620 McCulloh Street.

E. M. HiLDERMAN, 220 E. Lafayette Avenue.
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TRUSTEES.

Reuben Foster,, Chairman.

George B. Hunting, Secretary.

Hiram H. Taylor, ^ Robert S. Carswell,

John Murdoch, William H. Bayless,

Oliver Hoblitzell, Walters T. Harvey,

Franklin J. Morton, Samuel B. Marts,

Alvin N. Bastable, James R. Thompson.

Hiram H. Taylor, Treasurer.

2225 St. Paul Street.

Committees of Board of Trustees.

Finance.—Oliver Hoblitzell, Wm. H. Bayless, Reuben Foster.

Executive.—^John Murdoch, Robt. S. Carswell, Capt. Samuel B.

Marts.

Music.—George B. Hunting, Franklin J. Morton, Walters T.

Harvey.

Pew.—Hiram H. Taylor, Alvin N. Bastable, James R. Thomp-

son,

[The Church is supported by the rental of pews and the use

of pledge cards with envelopes. It is very desirable that all

members should be contributors in some way, as they may be

able, to the Church.]



NorthMINSTER Presbyterian Church. 43

USHERS.

The following have been appointed as ushers, and to assist in

collecting the offerings, in connection with the deacons, for one

year from March i, 1905 :

John W. Taylor,

Spencer E. Sisco,

R. Stanley Carswell,

Fred. G. Boyce, Jr.,

Castleman Beatty,

Lindsay W. Gardner,

Earle E. Taylor,

Carlton Coulter,

Walter H. Huff,

William H. Lewis,

Leslie D. Foster,

Jphn Henry Skeen,

Oscar F, Benjamin,

Franklin Upshur,

R. Carll Foster.

SEXTON,

Wesley Fortune^ 193 i Aisquith Street.
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THE SABBATH-SCHOOL.

Organized February 17, 1878.

Officers.

John E. Sisco^ Superintendent.

R. Stanley Carswell, Assistant Superintendent.

A. B. Crane, Sr., Assistant Superintendent.

Mrs. a. N. Bastable, Superintendent of Primary Dept.

Spencer E. Sisco, Secretary.

Earle E. Taylor, Assistant Secretary.

George B. Hunting, Treasurer.

Castleman Beatty, Assistant Treasurer.

A. D. Seeman, Librarian.

J. Harry Skeen, Assistant Librarian.

Lytton H. Varian, Assistant Librarian.

Leslie D. Foster, Assistant Librarian.

Albert Marshall, Musical Committee.

Number of scholars, 238
"

teachers, 31

Home Department, 83

Total, 352



MR. JOHN E. SlSCn,

Superintendent of the Sabbath Scl.ool.
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WOMAN'S AID and MISSIONARY SOCIETY.

Organized November 3, 1880.

Officers.

Mrs. a. L. Gardner, President.

Mrs. C. V. Carr,

Mrs. R. S. Carswell, \ Vice-Presidents.

Mrs. H. M. Lanier, J

Mrs. Reuben Foster, Treasurer.

Mrs. H. p. Stewart, Secretary.

Mrs. Douglas Foster, Secretary of Literature.

THE STEPHENSON MISSIONARY SOCIETY

OF GLEANERS.

Organized 1888.

Officers.

President, Cora Zimmerman.

First Vice-President, Marguerite Perry.

Second Vice-President, Mabel Whiteford.

Secretary, Virginia Alvey.

Treasurer, Maria Davis.

Leaders, Miss Jennie Gitzendanner and Miss Eliza-

beth S. Hunting.
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YOUNG LADIES' AUXILIARY SOCIETY.

Organized February 20, 1904.

Officers.

President, Mrs. H. M. Lanier.

First Vice-President, Miss Mary R. Wisner.

Second Vice-President, Miss Elizabeth S. Hunting.

Third Vice-President, Dr. Bessie B. Bennett.

Corresponding Secretary, Miss Florence B. Byrn.

Treasurer, Miss Elinor Foster.

Recording Secretary, Miss H. Catherine Carr.

THE MEN'S ASSOCIATION.

Organized 1904.

Officers.

Oliver Hoblitzell^ President.

William H. Bayless, Vice-President.

Carleton Coulter^ Secretary and Treasurer.
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THE SUNSHINE CLUB.

Organized December 8, 1904.

Its mdtto is, "Go Right on Working," and its aim to do

whatsoever may be found to do, and do it with energy.

The members meet every Friday, at 4 o'clock, in the chapel,

and spend an hour or so manufacturing articles which will later

be sold to gain funds for benevolent work principally in our own

city.

The membership is open to all the boys and girls of the

church, over five years of age, and their friends.

Officers.

President, Anna Steuart.

First Vice-President, Charlotte Crane.

Second Vice-President, George Bayless.

Third Vice-President, Clarence J. Thomson, Jr.

Recording Secretary, Leila Skeen.

Corresponding Secretary, John Salisbury Short.

Treasurer, Alice Benjamin.

The work is under the direction of Dr. Bessie Burns Bennett,

assisted by Mrs. R. Stanley Carswell and Miss Hattie A. Steuart.



48 NORTHMINSTER PRESBYTERIAN ChURCH.

PURVES SOCIETY OF EARNEST WORKERS.

Organized 1897.

Officers.

President, Miss Anna P. Bayless.

Secretary, Miss Carrie Benjamin.

Treasurer, Miss Leila Skeen,

This Society works for Home and Foreign Missions.

THE ART INDUSTRIAL SOCIETY.

Organized March 12, 1888.

Officers.

President, Mrs. W. H. Bayless.

Vice-Presidents, Mrs. Sarah Bond, Mrs. H. H. Tay-

lor, Mrs. Highland P. Stewart.

Treasurer, Mrs. Douglass Foster.

Secretary, Miss Nannie Miller.
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THE YOUNG PEOPLE'S SOCIETY OF

CHRISTIAN ENDEAVOR.

Organized March 28, 1887.

Our Motto : "For Christ and the Church."

Our Object.

To extend the kingdom of our Lord and Saviour, Jesus

Christ; promote an earnest Christian life and fellowship

amongst our members, and make them more useful in the service

of God and our church.

This Society is a part of, and owes allegiance only and alto-

gether, to the NORTHMINSTER PRESBYTERIAN ChURCH. It is

our church working among its young people.

Officers.

President, Spencer E. Sisco.

Vice-President, A. B. Crane, Jr.

Corresponding Secretary, Miss Elizabeth Hunting.

Recording Secretary, Dr. Bessie B. Bennett.

Treasurer, M. O. Benjamin.

Director, Albert Marshall.

Pianists, Miss Susie M. Thomas and Miss Helen Marshall.

Custodian of Records, E. E. Foster.

Junior Superintendent, Miss Roberta F. Carswell and Miss

Hattie a. Steuart.
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NORTHMINSTER CHOIR.

The choir, in the early days of the church, was under the

leadership of Mr, WilHam S. Cross, who not only gave his own

services free of cost to the church, but paid for the voices com-

posing the quartet choir from his own private funds, thus saving

the church from the expense of the choir (except the organist)

at a time when the church needed it, and up to March 23, 1886.

The organist at that time was Mr. Thomas S. Callis, who

continued to be for eig'hteen years, up to March, 1900, very

acceptably. We have had the following to sing for us : Miss

V. Schaefer, Miss M, Fort, Mr. Henry Waltjen, Miss Town-

send, Mr. Henry S. Macubbin, Mrs. Thomas S. Chappell, Miss

Augusta Dade, Mrs. Bettie H. McEwen-Dodge, Miss Lina A.

Thomas, Mr. Thomas L. Thomas, Miss Mabel Stevenson, Mrs.

Sarah Reed Hoke, Mr. Lewis R. McClure, Jr., the Misses Noel,

Miss Ada MacMitchell, Mrs. Dorothy L. Franklin, Mrs. Emilie

H. Andrews, J. Allan, Houghton, Mr. E. Russell Prescott was

our organist from March, 1900, until May i, 1903. Mr. John C.

Bowerman was organist for four months.
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1

THE CHOIR,

January i, 1905.

Mrs. F. Belle Cole-Shefloe, Organist.

2326 Charles Street.

Miss E. Marie Orem, Soprano.

836 W. North Avenue.

Miss Edith Stowe, Alto.

21 12 Oak Street.

Mr. William Graham Ducket, Tenor.

628 W. North Avenue.

Mr. T. Boyd Spiller, Bass.

1806 N. Charles Street.
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OUR WORK IN CHINA.

From our Missionary Pastor, Rev. Charles E. Patton.

The following report from Mr. Patton for November, 1904,

will give an idea of his work in China

:

At six chapels visited during November, 19 services were

held, 51 candidates examined, of whom 14 were received and

baptized, among them one woman.

Two infants were baptized at Shui Tung; one, the three

weeks' old son of the elder.

Three workers were notified of dismissal for lack of funds

;

two other cases are pending.

One man of the Theological Training Class has been dropped

partly through lack of funds.

Our itineration for the year has been reduced one-third to

keep our expenditures within our share of the board's appropria-

tion for the year's work.

During November itineration arrangements were made at

Mui Luk for the purchase of a chapel building and payment of

one-half year's local expenses which had nearly fallen through;

at Faa Chau for the local support of a chapel-keeper; at Shui

Tung for the same ; at Slan Hei for the purchase and repair of

a chapel building, with local running expenses; these all to be

borne by local members.
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At Ko Chau $300 mex. is being collected toward the pur-

chase of a chapel building.

Most of the chapels visited during November had not been

visited for six months. The results prove the necessity for more

frequent itineration and closer oversight. Our limited funds and

limited force limit our possibilities. One-half of our field is

being covered four times during the year ; the other half, from

two to three times.

Native Christianity Generosity.

It is sometimes affirmed that the Christian faith has little

hold on the hearts, and commands little self-denial on the part of

the Chinese, who profess it. Recently, a Chinese Christian, in

business in Canton, headed a subscription list for a new church

to be built in Hongkong with the substantial sum of $1,000.

This is only one of his gifts. Indeed, it would surprise some,

and, we would fain hope, gratify many, who know too little of

the facts, could they but know the considerable sums which

native Christians give for the support and extension of Chris-

tianity here in their own province.

May the new year be full of blessings for Northminster

Church, and, through it, for others, is the earnest prayer, from

over the seas, of

Sincerely, Charles E. Patton.

Yeung Kong, China, Nevember 25, 1904.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF NORTHMINSTER
PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH.

From April i, 1904, to March 31, 1905.

Officers—
Elders, 5

Deacons, * 4

Communicants—
Added on confession, 24

Added on certificate, ' 54

Total added during year, 78

Dismissed and dropped, 5

Deceased, 5

Net total of communicants, 468

Baptisms—
Adults, I

Infants, 9

Sabbath-school—
Members, 343
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MARRIAGES.

LiTTLEFiELD-WiSNER.—Myroii G. Littlcfield to Miss Emily I.

Wisner, October 5, 1904.

Palmer-Taylor.—Mr. Marion H. Palmer to Miss Helen G.

Taylor, November 16, 1904.

INFANT BAPTISMS.

Kerr, Nelson Reed, July 2, 1904. Parents, Harry A. and Mrs.

Blanche L. Kerr.

Gambrill, Laura Virginia, July 11, 1904. Parents, Albert, Jr.,

and Mrs. Nannie G. Gambrill.

Gambrill, Margarita Armstrong, July 11, 1904. Parents same

as above.

Frankenfield, Anna Elizabeth, November 20, 1904. Parents,

A. G. and Mrs. Jessie W. Frankenfield.

Seeman, Frederick Charles, Jr. Parents, Arringdale D. and

Mrs. Lillian A. Seeman, January 2, 1905.

DECEASED.

Mrs. Caroline Wilson, August 4, 1904.

Mrs. R. T. Waters, August 6, 1904.

J. Hume Smith, September 5, 1904.

Mrs. Mary P. Belt, September 11, 1904.

William Howard, August, 1904.
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NEW MEMBERS,

Added since June^ 1904.

Burslem, William, 1 140 York Road.

Cannon, Mrs. Anna M., 822 E. North Avenue.

Cox, Benjamin, 2310 Charles Street.

Cox, Mrs. Susie E., "

Cox, Miss Ida M., ... "

Cox, Raymond B., "

Creamer, Alexander F., 301 E. Twenty-first Street.

Creamer, Mrs. Mary O., " " "

Dunlop, Mrs. Mildred C, Belle Avenue, West Arlington.

Dunlop, Miss Minna L., "

Fahnestock, James W., 314 E. Twenty-first Street.

Fahnestock, Mrs. Anna A.,
" " "

Fahnestock, Frank G., " " "

Fossett, Henry Clay, 1912 Linden Avenue.

Fossett, Mrs. Margaret V., "

Fossett, Miss Grace, "

Fossett, Mrs. Jeanette H., 704 Carrollton Avenue.

Graham, Mrs. Mary B. A., 2707 St. Paul Street.

Hanna, Edward F., 2008 Guilford Avenue.

Hanna, Mrs. Varina D., "
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Homewood, Frank, 412 E. Twentieth Street.

Homewood, Mrs. Mary C,

Ho'mewood, Caldwell,

Homewood, George M., " " "

Kelley, Miss Ethel M., 1720 Calvert Street.

Kerr, Mrs. Josephine Alexander, 326 E. Twentieth Street.

Krumholtz, Miss Annie M., . .
. 2 Gutman Avenue.

Krumholtz, Miss Emma E.,
" "

Ledingham, Henry, 418 Girard Avenue.

Lewis, Miss Genevieve, Belle Avenue, West Arlington.

MacDonald, John Stuart, 212 W. Monument Street.

MacDonald, Mrs. Elizabeth Macy, ..." "

Reed, Miss Julia L., 9 E. Mt. Royal Avenue.

Reeside, John E., 2101 Calvert Street.

Reeside, Mrs. C. A., "

Reeside, J. Bartly D., "

Reeside, Armor, "

Reeside, Miss Mary, "

Reeside, Miss Sarah M., "

Skeen, J. S., 417 Mosher Street.

Skeen, Mrs. Emma E.,
" "

Tliuma, Miss Grace C, 326 E. Twenty-first Street.

Walter, Miss Laura Edna, 331 E. Twenty-first Street.

Wells, Robert, 408 E. Twenty-second Street.
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FAMILY DIRECTORY.

[Those marked wtth (*) are regularly enrolled communicants in Northminster Church.]

Adams, Mrs. Jane,* Govanstown.

Allen, Wm. D.,*

Allen, Mrs. Maud L.,*

Allen, Miss Alberta,*

Allen, W. D., Jr.,* 223 E. Lafayette Ave.

Andrew, David M.,*

Andrew, Mrs. Annie W.,*

Andrew, David W.,*

Andrew, Miss Helen,*

Harry,

(See Frankenfield) 2225 Guilford Ave.

Andrew, James, 806 E. Preston St.

Andrew, James, Jr., Pittsburg, Pa.

Aro, John T.,

Arc, Mrs. Matilda S.,* 24 Cottage Ave.

Ashburner, Chas. H., Jr.,* 1509 John St.

Ashley, Edward L.,*

Ashley, Mrs. Mabel,*

Evelyn Williams, Donald Lee,

2617 Charles St.

Ayers, Mrs. S. M.,* 1700 Calvert St.

Baker, Edwin F.,

Baker, Mrs. Margaret E.,*

William N., Jennie H.,

1601 Calvert St.

Bailey, Dr. James A.,*

Bailey, Mrs. M. Kerr,* Pittsburg,Pa.

(See Kerr.)

Barnitz, Covington D.,

Barnitz, Mrs. Annie C.,*

Barnitz, Miss Grace,*

(See Worthington.) 2010 St. Paul St.

Bastable, Alvin N.,*

Bastable, Mrs. Geraldine S.,*

27 W. North Ave.

Bayless, William H.,*

Bayless, Mrs. Annie S.,*

Bayless, William Silver,*

Bayless, James S.,*

Bayless, Miss Anna P.,*

Bayless, John Z.,*

Bayless, George E.,* 2221 St. Paul St
Beatty, Castleman,* iii E. 25th St.

Beacham, Wm. H.,

Beacham, Mrs. Imogene,*

426 E. Lafayette Ave.

Bedford, Mrs. Elizabeth,*

Bedford, Clara R.,*

Bedford, J. Plumer, Wilkesbarre, Pa.

Belt, William,* 417 N. Howard St.

Benjamin, George M.,*

Benjamin, Mrs. Ida M.,*

Benjamin, Curtis,*

Benjamin, Price,*

2907 Bernard St.

Benjamin, Martin Oscar,*

Benjamin, Mrs. Fannie,*

Benjamin, Miss Carrie,* *

Benjamin, Oscar F.,*

Alice, Carrie, Anna K.,

1927 Guilford Ave.

Bennett, Dr. B. B.,* 106 W. North Ave.

Benson, Miss Fannie R.,* New York.

Billingslea, Mrs. Jeanette S.,*

(See Mullan.) 704 E. 20th St.

Bishop, Mrs. Mary J. B.,*

527 Strieker St.

Bixby, Mrs. Carrie,*

Bixby, Miss Katharine D.,*

Harry F., 342 Girard Ave.
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Boggs, Robert J. B.,*

Boggs, Mrs. Sallie P.,* 2208 Oak St.

(See Goodman.)
Bond, Thomas E.,

Bond, Mrs. Fannie B.,* 726 Reservoir St.

Bond, Mrs. Sarah J.,*

Bond, Miss Alice,* 2309 N. Charles St.

Bowen, Douglas,-' 11 13 Guilford Ave.

Bowman, Miss Florence A.,"*

Mt. Washington.

Boyce, Fredk. G.,

Boyce, Mrs. Rebecca L.,

Boyce, Fredk. G., Jr.,

Boyce, Albert Page,

Boyce, Haywood E.,*

Boyce, Wm. Graham,*

Charles P., 217 E. Preston St.

Boyd, Mrs. Elizabeth K.,*

Boyd, Mrs. Mark K.,

Boyd, Miss Elizabeth K.,

(See Wier.) 2127 St. Paul St.

Brown, Mrs. Isabella,*

Brown, Miss Elizabeth G.,*

910 N. Calvert St.

Browne, James R.,

Browne, Mrs. M. Carrie,*

Browne, Miss Carrie S.,*

Browne, Miss M. Violet,*

2230 Barclay St.

Bunting, George A.,*

Bunting, Mrs. Nellie B.,*

Dorothy, 6 W. North Ave.

Burslem, William,*

Burslem, Mrs. Jane,*

Willie, 1 140 Yoik Road.

Byrn, Mrs. Anna F.,

Byrn, Miss Florence B.,

1827 N. Charles St.

Cannon, Mrs. Anna M.,*

822 E. North Ave.

Carr, Mrs. Catherine V.,*

Carr, Miss Helen Catherine,*

301 E. Preston St.

Carswell, Robert S.,*

Carswell, Mrs. Isabelle R.,*

Carswell, Miss Isabel,*

Carswell, Miss Roberta Faith,*

423 Gorsuch Ave.
Carswell, Robert Stanley,*

Carswell, Mrs. Sarah J. W.,*

106 E. 20th St.

Chapman, Mrs. Sarah,*

Chapman, Miss Mary M.,*

Chapman, Miss Sarah E.,*

1824 Greenmount Ave.

Clark, Miss Maggie P.,*

Clark, Miss Jeannie L., 1746 Federal St.

Cobbe, Mrs. Mabel,*

Coleman, Miss Sadye I.,* 336 E. 21st St.

Cornelius, Mrs. Jennie A.,*

22 Cottage Ave.

Coulter, Mifflin,*

(See Gambrill.) Avalon, Md.
Coulter, Carlton,* 1427 John St.

Cox, Benjamin,*

Cox, Mrs. Susan E.,*

Cox, Miss Ida M.,*

Cox, Raymond B.,* 2360 N. Charles St.

Craig, John G.,*

Craig, Mrs. Jane,*

Craig, Miss V. E.,* 3105 W. North Ave.

Crane, A. B.,*

Crane, Mrs. Charlotte,*

Crane, A. B., Jr.,*

Crane, John G.,*

Crane, Miss Mamie,*

Crane, Miss Alice,*

Crane, Miss Charlotte,*

2020 Mt. Royal Terrace.

Creamer, Alexander F.,*

Creamer, Mrs. Mary O.,*

301 E. 2ist St.

Cromwell, Mrs. Margaret A.,

Cromwell, Robert Holland,

Cromwell, Edward Milton,*

1730 Calvert St.
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Cross, John M.,*

Cross, Mrs. Charlotte F.,*

Kingston, N. Y.

Cross, Richard K.,*

Cross, Mrs. Mary Breckenridge,*

Virginia Castleman B.,

Elizabeth Breckenridge,

1520 Park Ave.

Davis, E. M.,*

Davis, Mrs. Mary Ganse,*

3614 Fairview Ave., Forest Park.

Davis, J. H.,*

Davis, Mrs. E. L.,* 1218 Argyle Ave.

Davison, Edward,

Davison, Mrs. Mary McAden,*

Yancey, Dorothy,

307 Woodlawn Road, Roland Park.

Dorman, Miss Marjorie C.,*

Brooklyn, N. Y.

Doughty, Mrs. Margaret M.,*

Doughty, Howard W.,*

(See Waters.) 1024 St. Paul St.

Doyle, Henry,*

Doyle, Mrs. Meta, 407 Roberts St.

Dunkle, Mrs. Elizabeth H.,*

Dunkle, Miss Elizabeth,*

Dunkle, Miss Margaret K.,*

2115 Charles St.

Dunham, Miss Leila,* 1617 St. Paul St.

Dunlop, Mrs. Mildred C.,*

Dunlop, Miss Minna L.,*

Belle Ave., W. Arlington.

(See Lewis.)

Edwards, James,*

Edwards, Miss Bessie,*

128 W. North Ave.

Elkington, Mrs. Laura Clark,*

Boston, Mass.

England, Mrs. Robert,* Hyattsville, Md.
Fahnestock, James W.,*

Fahnestock, Mrs. Anna O,.*

Fahnestock, Frank G.,*

314 E. 2ist St.

Fossett, Henry Clay,*

Fossett, Mrs. Margaret V.,*

Fossett, Miss Grace * 1912 Linden Ave.

Fossett, Mrs. Jeanette H.,*

704 Carrollton Ave.

Foster, Reuben,*

Foster, Mrs. Sarah L.,* 2301 Charles St.

Foster, Frederick,* Boston, Mass.

Foster, R. Carll,*

Foster, Mrs. Effie T., 2106 Charles St.

Foster, Arthur D.,*

Foster, Mrs. Georgie Smith,*

21 E. 22nd St.

John Walter, Arthur Douglas, Jr.,

Foster, Douglas,*

Foster, Mrs. Mary C.,*

Foster, Leslie D.,*

Foster, Miss Sarah Elinor,*

2303 N. Charles St.

Foster, E. Edmunds,*

Foster, Mrs. M. Celeste,*

Reuben, 23 E. 22nd St.

Frankenfield, A. G.,*

Frankenfield, Mrs. Jessie W.,*

(See Andrew.) 6 W. 26th St.

Franklin, Miss Minnie S.,*

Franklin, Miss Florence D.,*

(See Upshur.) 1022 St. Paul St.

Gambrill, Mrs. Nannie Gibson,*

Eleanor Gibson, Laura Virginia, Mar-

garita Armstrong.

(See Coulter.) Avalon, Md.

Gardner, Albert L.,*

Gardner, Mrs. Alice S.,*

Gardner, Lindsay, W.,*

216 E. Lafayette Ave.

Gardner, Mrs. Agnes,* California.

Garrett, W. G., Washington, D. C.

Gaston, Edward H.,*

Gaston, Mrs. Edward H.,*

1925 Oak Hill, Ave.

Gephart, W. Starr,

Gephart, Mrs. Mabel H.,
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Gephart, W. Starr, Jr.,

Gephart, George F., 35 E. North Ave.

Giese, Mrs. Catherine G.,*

Giese, Miss Florence M.,*

21 18 St. Paul St.

Giese, Louis,*

Giese, Mrs. Louis, Hampden.
Goodson, Miss Catherine M.,*

Hyatsville, Md.
Goodman, Mrs. Mary B.,*

(See Boggs.) 2208 Oak St.

Graham, Mrs. Mary B. A.,*

2707 St. Paul St.

Green, Herbert,* 2517 St. Paul St.

Greenfield, William,

Greenfield, Mrs. Grace Carswell,*

(See Carswell.) 403 Gorsuch Ave.

Guest, C. W.,

Guest, Mrs. Elinor M.,*

(See Miller.) 2437 Calvert St.

Habliston, Mrs. Helen Josephine,*

Delilah^ Eleanor, Pauline,

Charles C, 2008 N. Charles St.

Haines, Mrs. Mary E.,*

528 Carrolton Ave.

Hanna, Edmond F.,*

Hanna, Mrs. Varina D.,*

Varina Herbert, Laura, Edwin Fulton,

Jr., John Herbert, Henry Harlan,

2008 Guilford Ave.

Harman, Miss Lucy B.,*

Harman, Miss E. Corinne,*

21 E. 2ist St.

Harris, Miss Alice G.,* 1327 Park Ave.

Harrison, Miss Annie,*

Harrison, Miss M. Ella.,*

525 E. 22nd St.

Harvey, Walters T.,*

Harvey, Mrs. Jennie,* The Preston.

Hanzsche, Wm. T.,

Hanzsche, Mrs. Mary,*

Hanzsche, Miss Minnie D.,*

Wm. T., Jr., 2915 St. Paul St.

Haughwout, Miss Emily,*

Haughwout, Miss L. May,*

(See Millard), 2221 N. Charles St.

Hazlehurst, Franklin,

Hazlehurst, Mrs. Mary E.,*

Hazlehurst, Hugh J.,*

Hazlehurst, Miss Elizabeth,*

Archibald, George Purves,

Robert Purviance, 21 12 St. Paul St.

Hazlehurst, Miss Florence L.,*

Hazlehurst, Miss Virginia,*

Spotswood, N. J.

Hilderman, Eugene M.,*

Hilderman, Mrs. Lucy,*

Hilderman, Walter C,

220 E. Lafayette Ave.

Hoblitzell, Oliver,*

Hoblitzell, Mrs. Eliza J.,*

Hoblitzell, Robert,

Hoblitzell, John Gephart,

Hoblitzell, Miss Mary E.,*

100 E. North Ave.

Hoblitzell, Wm. W. 232 E. North Ave.

Holmes, Mrs. Mary E.,*

2246 Guilford Ave.

Homewood, Frank,*

Homewood, Mrs. Mary C.,*

Homevi^ood, CaPw^ell,*

Homewood, George M.*

412 E. Twentieth St.

Hough, Oscar E.,*

Howarth, Miss Allie,*

Howarth, Miss Louise,*

2410 Maryland Ave.

Huff, Henry E.,

Huff, Mrs. Annie E.,*

Huff, Walter H.,* Preston Flats.

Huff, Meredith,* Wilmington, Del.

Hull, Wm. J.,

Hull, Mrs. Amelia B., 1800 Calvert St.

Hunt, Mrs. Sylvia C.,* 139 E. North Ave.

Hunting, Eben B.,

Hunting, Miss Stella B.,*
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Hunting, Miss Elinor,

(See Sisco.) 2229 N. Charles St.

Hunting, George B.,*

Hunting, Mrs. Alice E.,*

Hunting, Miss Elizabeth Sisco,*

Hunting, Miss Alice,*

Hunting, Warren B., 34 W. 25th St.

Hyde, Mrs. Clara V.,* 1907 Cromwell St.

Hyde, Harry S.,*

Hyde, Wm. H.,

Hyde, Miss A. Mable, 1700 Calvert St.

Irwin, Miss Rachel,*

327 E. Lafayette Ave.

Kampe, J. Frederick,*

Kampe, Mrs. Ella, 51 Jenkins Lane.

Kernan, Miss Nellie H.,*

1 1 56 E. North Ave.

Kelley, Miss Ethel M.,* 1720 Calvert St.

Kerr, Robert Lyle,*

Kerr, Mrs. Barbara Thompson,*

William L.,

Kerr, Henry A.,

Kerr, Mrs. Blanche L.,

Nelson Reed, 191 1 Kennedy Ave.

Kerr, James P.,*

Kerr, Miss Jessie C.,*

Clark,

(See Bailey.) 2023 N. Charles St.

Kerr, Robert C.,*

Kerr, Mrs. Josephine Alexander,*

326 E. 20th St.

Kerr, Mrs. Nellie W.,* 25 W. North Ave.

King, Mrs. Janet,*

King, Miss Christina,

King, John,

King, Miss Margaret,

King, Miss Janet J.,*

King, Robert, 327 Girard Ave.

King, William,* 1719 Barclay St.

Kirk, Harry L.,

Kirk, Mrs. Maria L.,*

Ralph L., F. Nelson,

2401 Maryland Ave.

Kahler, Mrs. Margaret,*

(See Swindell.) iii W. 23rd St.

Kline, William,* Greenmount Ave.

Kreichbaum, Mrs. Jennie R.,'^'

Kreichbaum, Miss Minnie,*

Kreichbaum, Miss Nellie R.,*

Kreichbaum, Miss Jennie,*

Kreichbaum, Miss Emma R.,*

Kreichbaum, Miss Mary L.,*

211 E. 23rd St.

Krumholtz, Miss Annie M.,°^

Krumholtz, Miss Emma E.,*

2 Gutman Ave.

Lake, James,

Lake, Mrs. James,

Latfe, Miss Marguerite,

2210 Maryland Ave.

Lamping, Miss Laura V.,*

2517 St. Paul St.

Lanier, Herder M.,*

Lanier, Mrs. Julia L.,*

2109 St. Paul St.

Ledingham, Henry,* 418 Girard Ave.

Lewis, John C.,*

Lewis, Mrs. Helen Louise,*

Lewis, William Hartley,*

Helen, John C, Jr.

700 Gladstone Ave., Roland Park.

Lewis, Mrs. Emma Jane,*

9 E. Lafayette Ave.

Lewis, Miss Genevieve,*

Belle Ave., W. Arlington.

(See Dunlop.)

Linton, Mrs. Mary S.,* 44 Walport Ave.

Littlefield, Mrs. Emily I.,*

(See Wisner.) Philadelphia, Pa.

Loflin, Franklin C.,*

Loflin, Mrs. Octavia G.,*

Loflin, Miss M. Alice,*

Loflin, Miss Martha H.,*

2712 Charles St.

Lyon, Mrs. Joanna,*

Lyon, Harry S.,
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Lyon, Miss Mattie A.,

Lyon, Francis V., 2648 Boone St.

McAuliffe, Peter T.,* 171 1 Barclay St.

Mac Donald, J. Stuart,*

Mac Donald, Mrs. Elizabeth Macy,*

Hotel Sherwood,

212 W. Monument St.

Maccubbin, Harry S.,*

Maccubbin, Mrs. Mary H.,

21 1 1 Calvert St.

McCoubrey, Wm. J.,

McCoubrey, Mrs. Elizabeth,*

Elisabeth, Ethel, 1916 Linden Ave.
McKee, Donald,*

McKee, Mrs. Viola B.,*

(See Pearson.) 417 E. Lafayette Ave.

McWhirter, John J.,* 507 E. Madison St.

McWhirter, Robert A.,*

1314 E. Lafayette Ave.
Marshall, William C.,*

Marshall, Mrs. Elizabeth Wagner,*

Philadelphia.

Marshall, Albert,*

Marshall, Mrs. Marion V.,*

Marshall, Albert J.,

Marshall, John M.,

Marshall, Miss Ridie H.,*

Marshall, Miss Helen S.,*

314 E. Lafayette Ave.

Marts, Samuel B.,*

Marts, Mrs. Eliza W.,* Preston Flats.

Matthews, Mrs. Jennie E.,*

Matthews, John R.,

Matthews, Leslie R.,* 2306 Calvert St.

Meyer, Herman L.,*

Meyer, Mrs. Margaret E.,*

Meyer, Alfred A.,*

Meyer, Lewis H.,*

Meyer, John J.,*

Meyer, Charles,

610 Oxford Ave., Waverley.
Millard, Mrs. Francis H.,*

(See Haughwout.) 2221 N. Charles St.

Miller, Mrs. Emma V.,

Miller, Miss Ida T.,

(See Thomas.) 2010 N. Charles St.

Miller, Miss Katie,*

Falls Road, near North Ave.
Miller, Miss Nannie,*

(See Guest.) 2437 Calvert St.

Milker, Mrs. Mary K.,* 1733 Federal St.

Morton, Miss Priscilla B.,* Hillen Road.
Morton, Franklin J.,*

Morton, Mrs. Fannie M./"

Morton, Dudley J.,*

Morton, Miss Annie Nason,*

Morton, Alfred B.,*

Morton, Franklin C.,*

Beechdale and Club Aves.,

Roland Park.

Murdoch, John,*

Murdoch, Mrs. Mary H.,* 892 Park Ave.

Mullan, Mrs. Margaret M.,*

(See Billingslea.) 704 E. 20th St,

Mulligan, Mrs. Mary M.,*

Norris, Mrs. Mary Davies,*

A. Murdoch, Alan T., Roland Park.

Norris, Miss Emma Gill,*

Norris, Miss Margaret Hunter,*

Norris, Miss Helen Marr,* Sudbrook.

Onion, Frank,*

Onion, Mrs. Fanny Augusta,*

Onion, George Franklin,*

137 E. North Ave.

Oster, John Walter,*

Oster, Mrs. Laura Krebs,*

Sarah Imogene, 2219 Maryland Ave.

Palmer, Mrs. Helen G.,*

Patterson, Mrs. Grace W.,*

(See Wheeler.) 220 E. 22nd St.

Pearson, Mrs. Millicent E.,*

Pearson, Mrs. Olivia M. D.,*

(See McKee.) 417 E. Lafayette Ave.

Pentland, Mrs. Jennie P.,*

Mary H., 1120 Bolton St.

Pohlman, William J.,*
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Pohlman, Mrs. F.,*

Pohlman, Miss Emma C.,*

Pohlman, Miss Bertha A.,* Woodbrook.

Patton, Rev. Charles E.,

Edith,

(See Carswell.) China.

Pollock, Robert H.,*

Pollock, Mrs. Robert H.,*

21 12 Mt. Royal Terrace.

Porter, George H.,*

Porter, Mrs. Kate Wilde,*

Porter, Miss Adelaide W.,*

George H., Jr.,

(See Wilde.) 2430 Calvert St.

Powell, Mrs. Emma B.,*

Dorothy E.,

(See Willey.) Mt. Royal Flats.

Prentiss, Mrs. Fannie A. Taft,*

Prentiss, Miss Elizabeth V.,* Etah, India.

Prentiss, Charles Russell,*

Princeton, N. J.

Reed, John L.,*

Reed, Mrs. Elizabeth B.,*

Reed, Miss Julia L.,*

9 E. Mount Royal Ave.

Reid, Miss Louise,* 2106 St. Paul St.

Reese, Miss Olive N.,* St. Michaels, Md.
Reese, Miss Eleanor G.,*

2215 St. Paul St.

Reeside, John E.,*

Reeside, Mrs. C. A. *

Reeside, J. Bartly D.,*

Reeside, Miss Mary,*

Reeside, Miss Sarah M.,*

Reeside, Armor,*

Reeside, Miss Mary D.,* 2101 Calvert St.

Register, Henry S.,*

Register, Mrs. Kate Spear,*

Register, Henry S., Jr.,*

Register, Ramsay J.,* 1606 Eutaw Place.

Richards, James R.,*

Richards, Mrs. Alice W.,*

Richards, Miss Alice,*

Richards, Byron,*

Richards, Miss Helen,* 2424 Charles St.

Rogers, Miss Eliza,* 701 Calvert St.

Rupert, Mrs. Florence,* York, Pa.

Rueckert, Wm. Walter,* Cleveland, O.

Ruhl, Miss Lillie,*

Ruhl, Miss Daisy,*

Ruhl, Miss Jennie,*

Ruhl, Miss Birdie L.,* 306 E. Lanvale St.

Saulsbury, Wilson W.,* 38 E. 2Sth St.

Sears, Cyrus,

Sears, Mrs. Martha,*

Sears, Miss Annie R.,

423 E. Lafayette Ave.

Seeman, Arringdale D., 28 E. 25th St.

Seeman, Mrs. Lillian A.,

Frederick Charles, Jr.,

Shacker, Miss Katherine,*

922 E. North Ave.

Shearer, Miss Mary C.,*

Short, William S.,

Short, Mrs. Martha,*

W. Carleton, J. Saulsbury,

Harold A., 38 E. 2Sth St.

Shuter, David Newell,*

Shuter, Mrs. Sarah W.,*

301 E. North Ave.

Sisco, John E.,*

Sisco, Mrs. Sarah E.,*

Sisco, Gibson E.,* 2219 N. Charles St.

Sisco, Spencer E.,*

Sisco, Mrs. Margaret S.,*

Spencer, 10 E. 22nd St.

Sisco, Charles T.,

(See Hunting.) 2229 N. Charles St.

Skeen, J. S.,*

Skeen, Mrs. Emma E.,*

Skeen, John Henry,*

Skeen, Miss Eliza Williams,*

417 Mosher St.

Smith, John Walter,

Smith, Mrs. J. W., 21 E. 22nd St.

Smith, Mrs. Annie M.,*
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Smith, William M.,*

Smith, Miss Annie Ross M.,*

Smith, Miss Florence,*

Smith, Miss Sarah Ross,*

Smith, Miss Katherine M.,*

Smith, Miss Elizabeth T.,*

Smith, Miss Helen A. A.,*

Smith, Miss J. Hume,
Minnie E. L., 2233 St. Paul- St.

Spraig, Miss Minnie P.,*

Spring, Mrs. M. Pullman,*

Robert W., Jr.,

Catherine IV., 302 E. North Ave.

Staley, Mrs. A. E.,* 1721 St. Paul St.

Stewart, Wm.,*
Stewart, Mrs. Carrie V.,*

2102 15th St., Walbrook.

St. Claire, Mrs. Nellie W.,*

Stebbins, Arthur D.,

Stebbins, Mrs. Genevieve,*

754 Reservoir St.

Steuart, Miss Harriet A.,*

Steuart, Miss Louisa,* 2100 Calvert St.

Stewart, Hyland P.,*

Stewart, Mrs. Mamie B.,*

Stewart, Warren A.,*

Stewart, Hyland P., Jr.,*

2213 St. Paul St.

Stirling, William M.,

Stirling, Mrs. William Murray,

Stirling, Miss Elizabeth,*

Stirling, Miss Rosilie,*

Stirling, Miss Elsie,* Mt. Washington.

Swindell, Mrs. Ulyssia,*

/. Rogers,

(See Kahler.) iii W. 23rd St.

Taylor, Hiram H.,*

Taylor, Mrs. Elizabeth J.,*

Taylor, Miss Mabel,*

Taylor, John W.,* 2225 St. Paul St.

Taylor, Mrs. Isabella A.,*

Taylor, Earl E.,*

Taylor, Wilmer M.,*

Taylor, Miss Margaret,*

(See Palmer.) 2439 Maryland Ave.

Thomas, Miss Fannie O.,*

Thomas, Miss Lina A.,*

Thomas, Miss Susie M.,*

(See Miller.) 2010 N. Charles St.

Thomson, Clarence J.,*

Thomson, Mrs. Ida B. M.,*

Clarence J.,

J. Barnard, 2102 Maryland Ave.

Thomson, John,*

Thomson, Mrs. Priscilla N.,*

2207 Calvert St.

Thompson, James R.,*

Thompson, Miss Helen L.,*

Thompson, Miss Mary Bryce,*

Thompson, Miss J. Ethel,* 21 15 Oak St.

Thompson, Arthur D.,*

Thompson, Mrs. Ella V.,

Thompson, William Collins, '^^

Thompson, Samuel Arthur,

Royston IV., 1244 E. North Ave.

Thuma, Mrs. Laura E.,*

Thuma, Lee W.,*

Thuma, Miss Nellie M.,*

Thuma, Miss Grace,*

Richard Raymond, 326 E. 21st St.

Upshur, George M.,

Upshur, Miss Priscilla,*

Upshur, Franklin,*

Emcline,

(See Franklin.) 1022 St. Paul St.

Varian, Walter Irving,* 2401 Barclay St.

Varian, Mrs. Bessie L.,*

Varian, H. A. Lyton,*

106 E. Franklin St.

Wallace, Miss Vashti, H.,*

(See Habliston.) 2208 Charles St.

Walter, Miss Laura Edna,*

331 E. 2ist St.

Walton, Miss Louise M.,*

1827 Register St.
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Waters, Miss Mary E.,*

(See Doughty.) 1024 St. Paul St.

Webb, Wm. Roy,* 331 E. Lanvale St.

Wells, Robert,* 408 E. 22nd St.

Wheeler, Joseph C,
Wheeler, Mrs. Sophia,*

Wheeler, Miss Alice,*

(See Patterson.) 220 E. 22nd St.

Wheeler, Miss Clara M.,*

W^heeler, Miss Pearl E.,*

316 E. Lanvale St.

White, Miss Mary J.,* Salisbury, N. C.

Wier, Robert,*

Wier, Miss Janet,* 2123 St. Paul St.

Wier, A. Stanley,*

Wier, Mrs. Mary Boyd,*

Wier, John Boyd,

(See Boyd.) 2127 St. Paul St.

Wilde, Mrs. J. T.,*

(See Porter.) 2430 Calvert St.

Willey, Dr. W. T.,

Willey, Mrs. Elsie M.,*

(See Powell.) 2205 St. Paul St.

Wisner, Charles W.,*

Wisner, Mrs. Mary Ellen,*

Wisner, Charles W., Jr.,*

Wisner, Miss Mary R.,*

Wisner, Miss Alice J.,*

Wisner, John Irving,*

Wisner, Miss Ella Aminta,*

(See Littlefield.) 21 18 Oak St.

Worthington, Mrs. Annie C.,*

(See Barnitz.) 2010 St. Paul St.

Wright, Frank.

Wright, Mrs. Margaret O.,*

Wright, Joseph Lane,*

Wright, Lawrence O.,*

Wright, Miss Helen M.,*

117 E. 25th St.

Wright, Robert Clinton,

Wright, Mrs. Sally Murdoch,*

(See Murdoch.) Haverford, Pa.

Wysham, J. Kemp,* 1620 McCulloh St.
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STREET DIRECTORY.

Albion Hotel—Belt.

Argyle Avenue.
1218—Davis.

Barclay Street.

171 1—McAuliffe.

1719—King, R.

2230—Brown.

2401—Varian, W.

Belle Avenue, W.
Dunlop.

Lewis.

Bernard Street.

2907—Benjamin.

Bolton Street.

1 120—Pentland.

Boone Street.

2648—Lyon.

Calvert Street.

701—Rogers.

910—Brown.
1601—Baker.

1700—Ayers.

1700—Hyde.

1720—Kelley.

1730—Cromwell.

1800—Hull.
2101—Reeside.

21 1 1—McCubbin.

2207—Thomson.

2306—Matthews.

Arlington.

Calvert Street.

2427—Miller.
2430—Porter.

2430—Wilde.

2437—Guest.

2437—Miller.

Carrolton Avenue.

528—Haines.

704—Fossett.

Charles Street.

1827—Byrn.

2008—Habliston.

2010—Miller.

2010—Thomas.

2023—Kerr, J. P.

2106—Foster, R. C.

21 15—Dunkle.

2123—Haughwout.

2123—Millard.

2208—Wallace.

2219—Sisco, J. E.

2229—Hunting.

2229—Sisco, C. T.

2301—Foster, R.

2303—Foster, D.

2309—Bond.

2310—Cox.

2424—Richards.

2617—Ashley.

2712—Loflin.

Cottage Avenue.

22—Cornelius.

24- -Aro.
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Cromwell Street.

1907—Hyde.

EuTAw Place.

1606—Register.

Falls Road.

Miller.

Federal Street.

1733—Milker.

1746—Clark.

Forest Park—3614 Fairview Ave.

Davis, E. M.

Franklin Street, East.

106—Varian.

GiRARD Avenue.

327—King.
342—Bixby.

'

418—Ledingham.

GoRSucH Avenue.

403—Carsvi^ell.

403—Greenfield.

403—Fatten.

Govanstown.
Adams.

Greenmount Avenue.

1824—Chapman.

Kline.

Guilford Avenue.

1 1 13—Bowmen.

Preston Flats—Huff.

Harvey

Marts.

1927—Benjamin.

2008—Hanna.

Guilford Avenue.
2225—Andrew.

2246—Holmes.

Gutman Avenue.

2—Krumholtz.

Hampden.
Giese, Louis.

Hillen Road.

Morton.

Kennedy Avenue.

191 1—Kerr.

Jenkins Lane.

51—Kampe.

John Street.

1427—Coulter.

1509—Ashburner.

Lafayette Avenue, East.

9-.-Lewis.

216—Gardner.

220—Hilderman.

314—Marshall.

:>)2'/—Irwin.

417—McKee.

417—Pearson.

423—Sears.

426—Beacham.

1314—McWhirter.

Lanvale Street East.

306—Ruhl.

316—Wheeler.

331—Webb.

Linden Avenue.

1916—McCoubrey.

1912—Fossett.
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Madison Street, East.

507—McWhirter, J. J.

Maryland Avenue.
2102—Thomson.
2210—Lake.

2219—Oster.

2401—Kirk.

2410—Howarth.

2439—Taylor.

McCuLLOH Street.

1620—Wysham.

Monument Street, West.
212—MacDonald.

Mosher Street.

417—Skeen.

Mt. Royal Avenue.

9—Reed.

Mt. Royal Flats—Powell.

Mt. Royal Terrace.

2020—^Crane.

21 12—Pollock.

Mt. Washington.
Bowman.
Stirling.

North Avenue, East.

35—Gephart.

100—Hoblitzell.

139—Hunt.

137—Onion.

232—Hoblitzell.

301—Shuter.

302—Spring.

822—Cannon.

922—Shacker.

North Avenue, East.

1156—Kernan.

1244—Thompson.

North Avenue, West.
6—Bunting.

25—Kerr.

27—Bastable.

106—Bennett.

128—Edwards.

3 105—Craig.

Oak Hill Avenue.

1925—Gaston.

Oak Street.

21 15—Thompson.
21 18—Wisner.

2208—Boggs.

2208—Goodman.

Oxford Avenue, Waverly.
610—Meyer.

Park Avenue.

893—Murdoch.
1327—Harris.

1520—Cross.

Preston Street, East.

217—Boyce.

301—Carr.

Preston Flats—Marts.

Preston Flats—Harvey.

Preston Flats—Huff.
806—Andrew.

Register Street.

1827—Walton.

Reservoir Street.

726—Bond.

754—Stebbins.
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Robert Street.

407—Doyle.

Roland Park.

307 Woodland Road—Davison.
Hoblitzell, Mr. and Mrs. Oliver, Jr.

700 Gladstone Ave.—Lewis.

Beechdale and Club Aves.—Morton.
Norris, D.

Stricker Street.

527—Bishop.

Sudbrook.

Norris.

St. Paul Street.

1022—Upshur.

1024—Doughty.

1024—Waters.

1617—Dunham.
1 72 1—Staley.

2010—Barnitz.

2010—Worthington.

2106—Reid.

2iog—Lanier.

2112—Hazlehurst.
21 18—Giese.

2123—Wier.

2127—Boyd.

2127—Wier.

2205—Willey.
2213—Stewart.
2215—Reese.
2221—Bayless.

2225—Taylor.
2233—Smith.
2517—Green.

2517—Lamping.

2707—Graham..

2915—Hanzsche.

Twentieth Street^ East.
106—Carswell.

Twentieth Street, East.

326—Kerr.

412—Homewood.
704—Billingslea.

704—Mullan.

Twenty-first Street, East.
21—Harman.

301—Creamer.

314—Fahnestock.

326—Thuma.
331—Walter.
336—Coleman.

Twenty-second Street, East.
10—Sisco.

21—Foster.

21—Smith.

23—Foster.

220—Patterson.

220—Wheeler.

808—Wells.
525—Harrison.

Twenty-third Street, East.
211—Kreichbaum.

Twenty-third Street, West.
Ill—Kohler.

Ill—Swindell.

Twenty-fifth Street, East.
28—Seeman.

38—Short.

38—Salisbury.

Ill—Beatty.

117—Wright.

Twenty-fifth Street, West.
34—Hunting.

Twenty-sixth Street, West.
6—Frankenfield.
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Walbrook.
2102 Fifteenth Street—Stewart.

Walport Avenue.

Linton.

WOODBROOK.

Pohlman.

York Road.

1 140—Burslem.

Out of Town.
Pittsburg, Pa.—Bailey.

Wilkesbarre, Pa.—Bedford.

Avalon, Md.—Coulter.

Avalon, Md.—Gambrill.

Kingston, N. Y.—Cross.

Hyattsville, Md.—England.

Boston, Mass.—Elikington.

Brooklyn, N. Y.—Dorman.

New York—Benson.

Cleveland, O.—Rueckert.

Philadelphia—Littlefield.

Philadelphia—Marshall.

Out of Town.
California—Gardner.

Spotswood, N. J.—Hazelhurst.

Wilmington, Del.—Huff, M.
Princeton, N. J.—Prentiss.

Salisbury, N. C—White.

Philadelphia, Pa.—Wright.
York, Pa.—Rupert.

St. Michael's, Md.—Reese.

Fayetteville, W. Va.—Wheeler.

Washington, D. C.—Garrett.

China.

Patton, Rev. Charles E.

India, Etah.

Prentiss.

Address Unknown.
Cobbe, Mrs. Mabel.

Franklin, Miss Minnie S.

Hough| Oscar.

Mulligan, Mrs. Mary M.
Shearer, Miss Mary C.

St. Claire Mrs. N. W.

Members of the church and congregation are asked to aid in making the

Directory a perfect register of their names and addresses by promp notifica-

tion of any errors, omissions or changes to which their attention may be

directed.
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